

GRASS VALLEY FRIENDS MEETING

Of the Religious Society of Friends College Park Quarterly Meeting, Pacific Yearly Meeting

13075 Woolman Lane, Nevada City, CA 95959 @ The Sierra Friends Center, off Jones Bar Road, Nevada City, CA 95959

Phone: 530) 648-0190
Website: www.gvfriends.org

Email: grassvalleyfriends@gmail.com

First Days: 9:00am Singing at the Meeting House (zoom) 10:00 am Silent Meeting for Worship (zoom)

Newsletter, Seventh and Eighth Months, 2021

Calendarpg. 1	Treasurer's Reportpg. 8
Glossarypg. 2	Bhakti Banningpg. 9
Minutes & Recordpg. 2	New Quaker Communitiespg. 9
Advices & Queries, 7th Monthpg. 6	GVFM Contacts & Committeespg. 11
Advices & Queries, 8th Monthpg. 7	

MEETING CALENDAR

First Sunday

Program to be announced

Second Sunday

• Silent Meeting for Worship, Potluck, Meeting for Worship on the Occasion of Business

Third Sunday

As announced

Fourth Sunday

• Spiritual Life – To Be Announced

Fifth Sunday

- On Fifth Sundays we hold a Family Meeting for Worship. *Children and adults gather and spend 20 minutes in storytelling, 20 minutes in singing and 20 minutes in silent worship.*
 - ♣ 1st First Day: Bible Story and Song
 - ♣ 2nd First Day: A Story and a Craft or Activity
 - ♣ 3rd First Day: A Story plus Time for Silent Worship
 - ♣ 4th First Day: A Creative, Topical Curriculum
 - ≠ 5th First Day: Family Worship (a story, singing and silent worship)
 - **↓** Online Worship: every Wednesday evening, 7:00-7:30 pm

HAPPENING NOW

 July 23 to 28, 2021 - Pacific Yearly Meeting zoom Annual Session: Love and Justice: Heeding the Spirit's Power Within and Among Us

HAPPENING LATER

- September 11, 2021 Living with Fire: A Restoration Workshop
- November 13, 2021 Living with Fire: A Restoration Workshop
- Memorial Service for Bob Barns To be announced.

GLOSSARY- Abbreviations and terms used in the GVFM newsletter

M&O: Ministry and Oversight **PacYM:** Pacific Yearly Meeting **PHP** – Pendle Hill Pamphlet

FGC: Friends General Conference

QUNP: Quaker United Nations Project

FASE: Friends Association for Services to the Elderly

CPQM: College Park Quarterly Meeting **RSWR:** Right Sharing of World Resources

Threshing Session: A meeting at a separate time that is specifically not for decision-making; normal practices of a Quaker meeting for business are relaxed so that Friends may speak more than once to an issue, may speak to a point just made, or may ask a question of a previous speaker.

MINUTES & RECORD: Meeting for Worship on the Occasion of Business July 11, 2021

We met on Zoom.

Present: Don McCormick (co-clerk), Amy Cooke (recording clerk), Dean Olson, Dianne Marshall, Gordon Starr, Doug Hamm, Judy Hamilton, Chamba Cooke.

The Meeting opened with silent worship.

CLERK'S REMARKS

- The purpose of our meetings for business is to seek the Spirit's will for us as a community. We are here to worship and not to get through an agenda.
- If you want to suggest that we take some time for worship or take more time between speakers, please say, "Clerk, can we have some time for silence" or use the Time Out sign.
- Being a clerk is a role assigned to one or two people, but clerking is a bunch of behaviors that we all can engage in, and I hope we all will.
- We leave room for Spirit to come through, releasing our thoughts, judgements, opinions and becoming silent inside and out. We can hand our issues to Spirit/God/Jesus, and then settle into any sensations or messages coming through.

QUERY: How do you know when you've detected the will of the Spirit--in Business Meeting and in your daily life?

Does something spontaneously occur to you and the thing that lets you know that it's genuine is that it is
 NOT coming from your ego, NOT promoting conflict, not coming from your intellect, NOT a response to
 something else that was said, and so on? And it is NOT all that, and it still stands, you know it is the will of
 the Spirit.

- Or is there a sense that comes with it that lets you know—a certain feeling (like quaking or feeling compelled to do something even if you really don't want to), an image that accompanies it, or is it the way it sounds inside your head?
- Or is there a sense that it's right, or that it diminishes your ego and your will and you know this because it goes against the agenda or opinion you came into the meeting with?
- Or do you detect something and you think about and evaluate it? You ask yourself, does it promote community, love, or balance? Does it foster joy?

Friends spoke to how they discern the will of the Spirit in their lives and in Meeting.

Co-Clerk's Announcement

Anita McCormick, one of our co-clerks, wrote a letter to our Meeting, which was read and appended.

Don McCormick let the gathered Friends know that he also needs to step down as co-clerk. He shares many of Anita's concerns, and noted that a decision by people who are married is not an individual decision, it is a joint decision. Exposure to one is essentially exposure to both. He accepted the position as co-clerk because it was a joint position. He let us know that he could not and cannot do the work on his own. In addition, he has been working on a year-long mindfulness teacher training program and it is much more work than he had anticipated. Our co-clerk is overwhelmed. He also communicated to us that he has gotten a lot out of being co-clerk. He has learned a lot. It is good work that he has valued and he will miss it.

COMMITTEE REPORTS (see reports appended, committee clerk is noted in bold)

STEWARDSHIP: Mary Starr, Gordon Starr, Reed Hamilton, Pat Phillips, Doug Hamm, Fosten Wilson (Treasurer, Ex-officio) Dianne Marshall (ex officio as Librarian and Newsletter Editor), Hailey Wilson

Gordon Starr gave the report, attached.

There was a meeting with Marty, who has reaffirmed the importance to Sierra Friends Center of the Grass Valley Friends Meeting. She also confirmed that the Meetinghouse and the classroom are the sole use of GVFM from 9 am to 2 pm on Sundays. She is also interested in acquiring the equipment for blended or hybrid meetings. We are also free to purchase that equipment ourselves. Marty also spoke to the experiences Friends had when the memorial for Peggy took place. She noted that all group activities need to adhere to new cleanliness guidelines as well as insurance needs. The Center is also contending with having to closely monitor who is on campus.

We need to hold our own insurance for liability. It was noted that Church Mutual dropped Sierra Friends Center after the fire. State Farm has made some recommendations. Mertens Insurance, and Wanda Mertens specifically, was recommended.

Work days will still be available by prior arrangement. We must clean up after ourselves. Also, they will be making the meetinghouse shoes-free, with an entry area for shoe storage. The floor will need to be cleaned after each use. SFC will supply cleaning supplies and directions.

The Stewardship Committee is recommending that we pay half of the wifi installation cost (\$225) as well as start paying \$25 per month for the wifi service. The timing is unclear at this time.

MINUTE (seasoning until 9th month): Grass Valley Friends Meeting (GVFM) approves the expense of \$225 as a one-time installation fee for the dedicated wifi at the meetinghouse at Sierra Friends Center. GVFM approves the monthly expense of \$25 for the wifi use, which we agree to periodically review.

SPIRIT & WITNESS: Gordon Starr, Judy Hamilton, Gordon Bishop, Dorothy Henderson, Anita and Don McCormick (ex-officio Co Clerks), **Judy Hamilton**

Judy Hamilton made the report, attached.

MINUTE 07.2021.01: Grass Valley Friends Meeting accepts the Letter of Sojourn for Amy Cooke and Chamba Cooke to the Groupe Languedoc in Congenies, France as attached to these minutes.

MINUTE 07.2021.02: Grass Valley Friends Meeting approves the new Representative structure as attached to the June 2021 Minutes of the Meeting for Business.

MINUTE (seasoning until 9th month): Grass Valley Friends Meeting warmly welcomes Judy Hamilton to the Grass Valley Friends Meeting of the Religious Society of Friends.

The Memorial Minute for Peggy Baldwin was read and accepted.

Hybrid Meeting ad hoc Committee: Gordon Starr, Amy Cooke, Don McCormick, Pat Phillips.

The committee met and did not come to unity. We would like to hear how Friends are feeling, what their thoughts are, and gather input and feedback.

The issues that the committee grappled with were:

- 1. Re-opening guidelines (indoor vs outdoor, masks, contact tracing, COVID testing if symptoms are present, Delta variant risks)
- 2. Equipment issues (What do we need? What equipment will Sierra Friends Center buy? Who will be in charge of set up and operation?)
- 3. Wireless Configuration and costs
- 4. Move-in date to communicate to Sierra Friends Center

The attached report was read by Gordon Starr and a mini threshing session was convened on the topic, with the following comments:

- It was noted that the Children's Program has decided not to meet in a hybrid fashion.
- How will we handle singing given that singing is a highly contagious activity?
- There are people who do not show up because Zoom does not work for them. How can we get their input given that they do not meet on Zoom?
- Could we meet at a greater distance for singing?
- An example was mentioned of an outbreak at a place of work at which all persons there were vaccinated.
- The number of cases is increasing drastically. It is unclear whether that is due to opening up or to the Delta variant.
 - New cases are largely in younger populations and in unvaccinated individuals.
 - There was concern about our relationship with Sierra Friends Center. There was discomfort expressed with taking our time with this decision.
 - Can we meet with those people who are comfortable with in-person meetings and include those who are uncomfortable on Zoom?
 - If we decide not to meet at Sierra Friends Center, can we reach out to those who do not meet on Zoom?

- As we discern God's will, science and policy is one part and not the only part.
- Given the long-standing relationship with SFC, we have a certain amount of interest in meeting in person if possible and work with Zoom to improve the experience in order to meet the needs of those who are not able to participate in person. We are in process.
- We can honor those who are evaluating the risk and making the judgement that they cannot participate in person. And, if those who feel comfortable meeting in person are willing to do so, then we can also honor that.
- There is support for reaching out to as many people as we possibly can in as many ways as we can. Friends volunteered to help in that effort (Dianne Marshall and Judy Hamilton).
- It was also noted that there is evidence that you can test positive if you are vaccinated and not transmit the virus.

This issue will now go back to Spirit and Witness for the next steps. We recommended that the newsletter, phone calls, and email tree be used to gather information. S&W will meet in August. The Newsletter editor noted that the August newsletter could be a single subject issue.

NOMINATING: Doug Hamm, Patricia Phillips, Karen Olson

Doug Hamm gave the report. The Nominating Committee has received the resignations of our co-clerks. The committees are still selecting their clerks. Please notify the Committee of the clerk selection when it is complete.

WELCOME: Karen Olson, **Kathy McCreery**, ex officio Website/Facebook Coordinator (Amy Cooke), ex officio Zoom coordinator (Hailey Wilson and Stuart Smith), ex officio Email Coordinator (Judy Hamilton)

No report.

CHILDREN'S PROGRAM: Karen Olson, Judy Hamilton, **Dorothy Henderson**, Gordon Bishop, Anita McCormick, Doug Hamm, Don McCormick

No report.

REPRESENTATIVE and OFFICER REPORTS

- Sierra Friends Center: The report was read and is attached
- Interfaith Nevada County: Dianne Marshall gave the report that the group is being reconstituted as the faith leaders bring their congregations back. More to follow.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

- If you use Facebook, follow the Grass Valley Friends Meeting page, or join the Facebook Grass Valley Friends Meeting group. If you share a post from the page, your friends will see it! It helps our visibility. Follow this <u>link</u>.
- It's easy to give to Grass Valley Friends Meeting! Go to <u>gvfriends.org</u> and click on the Give button. This takes you to a secure site for donations. Please consider making your contribution monthly. Your contribution covers our Pacific Yearly Meeting dues and ensures that our activities as a Meeting are sustained. Thank you.
- The dates for Pacific Yearly Meeting Annual Session 2021 have been set: July 23-28, 2021. See the Clerk's Call to Annual Session 2021 and the AS 2021 Information Page for more information.
- Online Worship: every Wednesday evening, 7:00-7:30 pm sponsored by PYM Eldering subcommittee of the Ministry Committee. Consider also the many other opportunities for online Quaker worship listed at westernfriend.org.

FEEDBACK

The clerk, Don McCormick, asked for feedback on his clerking as a whole.

- Appreciation was given that the clerk shared his learning process openly. The meeting became a part of his process, and he became part of ours.
 - Appreciation was given that the co-clerks studied clerkship and brought that learning to GVFM.
- Starting the meeting with the reminder of what we are doing, and then the Query grounding us in spirit, helped to focus our Meetings for Business.
 - There is sadness at the departure of our clerks
 - Appreciation was expressed for the humor the co-clerks brought, and support for others.
- Each person brings a difference flavor to clerking, and the academic underpinning was very appreciated, while at times there was a small lack of focus in the meetings
 - The co-clerks have been dedicated to welcoming others to our meeting
 - Time to meet with Recording Clerk in between meetings was deeply appreciated.

ACTION ITEMS & ITEMS SEASONING

MINUTE (seasoning until 9th month): Grass Valley Friends Meeting (GVFM) approves the expense of \$225 as a one-time installation fee for the dedicated wifi at the meetinghouse at Sierra Friends Center. GVFM approves the monthly expense of \$25 for the wifi use, which we agree to periodically review.

MINUTE (seasoning until 9th month): Grass Valley Friends Meeting warmly welcomes Judy Hamilton to the Grass Valley Friends Meeting of the Religious Society of Friends.

READING OF THE RECORD AND MINUTES

Note: The record and the minutes were read, corrected and approved.

If you are giving a report to GVFM, please send the actual report to the recording clerk at grassvalleyfriends@gmail.com THE FRIDAY BEFORE MEETING FOR BUSINESS.

GVFM Newsletter Reminder: Please have items into Diane Marshall by Tuesday at 10 am.

The Meeting closed with silent worship.

Respectfully recorded by Amy Cooke, recording clerk.

APPENDICES:

- 1. Letter from Anita McCormick
- 2. Spirit and Witness report
 - a. Sojourn Letter, Amy and Chamba Cooke
 - b. Hybrid Meeting ad hoc Committee report
 - c. Representative Committee
- 3. Memorial Minute for Peggy Baldwin
- 4. Sierra Friends Center report
- 5. Stewardship Committee
- 6. Treasurer's Report

ADVICES AND QUERIES: SEVENTH Month ~ REACHING OUT

Friends fellowship begins and is nurtured within the home and Meeting. It reaches greater fulfillment as we carry our beliefs into the wider community.

Share your Quaker faith. Take time to learn about other people's experiences of the Light and, as you learn, give freely from what you have gained. Respect the experiences and opinions of others, but do not be afraid to say what you value. Welcome the diversity of culture, language, and expressions of faith in your Monthly Meeting, the Yearly Meeting, and the world community of Friends. Encourage discourse with Friends of pastoral and programmed traditions, and with members of other faiths.

Friends have a long history of involvement in public and private education, sharing our values with the world and nurturing future generations. Be mindful of the needs of children in your community and of avenues for deepening understanding between peoples.

How does my life reflect Friends beliefs and thus encourage others to be interested in the Religious Society of Friends?

Do I respond openly to inquiries about Quaker experience and belief?

What does our Meeting do to make others aware of Friends principles and practices?

What are we doing to help people of various races, cultures, and backgrounds feel at home among us and we among them?

How do we encourage newcomers to return and participate in activities of the Meeting?

In what ways do we participate in the life of the interfaith community and in the wider fellowship of Friends?

ADVICES and QUERIES: EIGHTH Month ~ SIMPLICITY

Life is meant to be lived from a Center, a divine Center... a life of unhurried peace and power. It is simple. It is serene. It takes no time, but it occupies all our time.

thomas r. kelly, testament of devotion, 1941

A life centered in God will be directed toward keeping communication with God open and unencumbered. Simplicity is best achieved through a right ordering of priorities, maintaining humility of spirit, avoiding self-indulgence, resisting the accumulation of unnecessary possessions, and avoiding over-busy lives.

Elise Boulding writes in My Part in the Quaker Adventure,

- "Simplicity, beauty, and happiness go together if they are a byproduct of a concern for something more important than ourselves."
 - Do I center my life in an awareness of God's presence so that all things take their rightful place?
 - Do I live simply, and promote the right sharing of the world's bounty?
 - Do I keep my life uncluttered with things and activities, avoiding commitments beyond my strength and light?
 - How do I maintain simplicity, moderation, and honesty in my speech, my manner of living, and my daily work?

- Do I recognize when I have enough?
- *Is the life of our Meeting so ordered that it helps us to simplify our lives?*

Grass Valley Friends Meeting Quarterly Treasurer's Report, 7-7-2021

summary = Mixed...ok for now.

Contributions were excellent in April, but May & June were thin*. Overall, contributions have exceeded our budget expectations since October. Income is down a lot since Covid-19 stopped our in-person Meetings. But our costs dropped with our reduced budget & when we stopped paying Meetinghouse rent and started renting the cargo container in January.

With more income than expenses, we have been able to pay PYM, CPQM, & *all* of our outbound donations for this fiscal year, by June 30th. Costs will increase when we resume Meeting for Worship in person.

All Restricted Funds (Sharing Fund, Scholarship Funds, etc.) are unchanged in the last three months. Our General Fund includes container rent, our donation to the Neisenan, and our costs for the Peggy Baldwin memorial along with the items mentioned above.

All contributions to Grass Valley Friends Meeting -- whether money, service, or prayer – are deeply appreciated. Thank you, fosten

Money contributions are either to my address below or online by using the "give" button at "gvfriends.org" and below.

Fosten Wilson, Treasurer 15719 American Hill Rd Nevada City, Calif. 95959

(*) April = \$1,240. May = \$404. & June = \$340.

Please consider supporting Grass Valley Friends Meeting! Click on the Give button below.



Note: This button will take you to a secure site.



Bhakti Banning this post was written by <u>Kellie Cunningham Bliss</u> (Bhakti's daughter)

After a long conversation with her oncologist, my mom decided to start hospice care Tuesday June 29th. She is now at my home, resting and moving toward her final transition from this life. She was busy and living independently up until last Saturday, so this has been a huge change in a very short period of time. Her GIST cancer tumors have grown uncontrollably and the bulk is pressing on her lungs and other internal organs. The cancer has metastasized and is spreading.

She has not had the energy to talk on the phone, check email, or read facebook. However, if you post a video or written hello, I will make sure she sees it when she is able.

Please know she loves you all. Mom has always valued her friends and family and her gigantic heart holds space for each and every one of you.

Here is where updated info will be posted as I am able (posted by Kellie, Bhakti's daughter) https://www.caringbridge.org/visit/bhaktibanning

If you would like to support the family, there is a meal sign up for those living nearby. Some folks are having prepared meals sent as

well. https://takethemameal.com/meals.php?t=BGJZ4132&fbclid=IwAR2mUiAR0Ry5IJvBwYJzFWy295NNh https://takethemameal.com/meals.php?t=BGJZ4132&fbclid=IwAR2mUiAR0Ry5IJvBwYJzFWy295NNh https://takethemameal.com/meals.php?t=BGJZ4132&fbclid=IwAR2mUiAR0Ry5IJvBwYJzFWy295NNh https://takethemameal.com/meals.php?t=BGJZ4132&fbclid=IwAR2mUiAR0Ry5IJvBwYJzFWy295NNh https://takethemameal.com/meals.php?

What would it look like if we acted like we believed that God is in every thing and everyone?

Johanna Jackson, State College, PA Friends Meeting

New Quaker Communities

How do Quakers build strong, limber communities? How do we become relevant in 2050? I believe to answer these questions we need input from people across many different ages and lifestyles.



Johanna Jackson (she) is a member of State College Friends Meeting. She travels in the ministry with JT Dorr-Bremme, a Friend with a gift for eldering. They formed the <u>Listening Project</u>, a series of creative conversations rooted in love. Johanna writes about the spiritual community that sustains her, imagining how similar groups could help sustain others, too.

JOHANNA JACKSON: I am part of the <u>Tuesday Worship Group</u>, a peer support network that spans across several yearly meetings. We are all Friends ages 20-50. We work to support faithfulness with weekly worship-sharing. I believe that what we are doing is a new model among Friends. Our combination of worship-sharing and companionship may work for others, too.

The Tuesday Worship Group is small in number (4-6 Friends), yet we offer great richness to one another. We first tested out remote worship in November 2018, unsure if we would like it. In meeting, though, we found the courage and companionship that we needed. We decided to start meeting weekly in March 2019.

Later, two members of the group began to wonder if the barriers we'd faced in the Quaker world were happening to other people as well. JT and I started holding worship-sharing with many other Friends, mostly listening, and formed the <u>Listening Project</u> in 2020. The Listening Project is a series of creative conversations, rooted in love. From these interviews, we have learned much about the spiritual condition of Friends. What we had long suspected is true: many Friends under 55 are in need of spiritual peers. How do we help build community for younger Friends? <u>Here's a to-do list.</u>

1. Find Spiritual Peers

I helped form this worship group because I needed peers on my journey. I was exploring new spiritual ground and had mentors, but no peers. My local meeting deemed "medium to large" by Quaker standards, did not include anyone within ten years of my age. I continued like this for seven years. Then I met spiritual peers at the FGC Gathering in 2017. How revitalizing!

We need large gatherings like FGC to help people find their age-mates and travel mates. In our case, the Tuesday Worship Group was spread out across a wide distance. When we first started meeting, the average drive time between two houses was five hours. Some individual pairs lived closer than that, but it was rare. We spanned across four yearly meetings, but had only five members! That's how far we needed to reach to find a core group. Offering scholarships to attend large gatherings, either individually or systemically, supports the future of the Religious Society of Friends.

2. Create Small Groups

In the past, as recently as the 1970s, Quakers enjoyed a boom of young people who supported and encouraged each other. Brian Drayton (On Living with a Concern for Gospel Ministry) talks about coming into spiritual maturity with a circle of other elders and ministers. Quakers I know, now in their 60s, recall potlucks and conversations with peers when they were in their 30s. As our numbers decline, younger Friends today need to reach beyond their local meetings to find that community of peers.

Small groups can help. We need new structures and alternatives to support Friends under 55. These include worship-sharing groups and networks, which can foster leadership in a new generation. The Tuesday Worship Group is one such group, but there are many models. The Three Rivers Meeting is a remote worship group. It focuses on reclaiming and reinventing Quaker practices for today. Other groups include spiritual friendship circles and a set of peer support groups recently sponsored by New York Yearly Meeting. We have an opportunity to intentionally build groups like these.

<u>Click here to complete reading Johanna's list.</u> Think about what she is saying in the light of growing the number of people who attend Grass Valley Friends Meeting.

Grass Valley Friends Meeting (GVFM) Contact Information (7-1-21) Office Holders:

OFFICERS:

- Clerk of the Meeting: Position Open
- Communication/Email Coordinator: Judy Hamilton <u>judywestonhamilton@gmail.com</u>
- Directory Coordinator: Nancy Anderson (530-364-8351) ntowhee@gmail.com
- Mail Clerk: Dean Olson (530)270-9366 deanolson44@gmail.com
- Newsletter Editor: Dianne Marshall <u>dmarshall@pacific.net</u>
- Newsletter Distribution: Pat Phillips
- Directory Clerk: Nancy Anderson (530-364-8351) ntowhee@gmail.com
- **Librarian:** Dianne Marshall dmarshall@pacific.net, 530-274-1922
- Mail Clerk: Dean Olson (530)270-9366 deanolson44@gmail.com
- Newsletter Distribution: Pat Phillips 530-913-1338 pephillips1949@gmail.com

- Newsletter Editor: Dianne Marshall dmarshall@pacific.net (530) 274-1922
- Newsletter Reader: Karen Olson deanolson44@hotmail.com
- Placer County Worship Group: Stuart Smith sewsmitharts@yahoo.com 916-663-3539
- Recorder: Nancy Anderson (530-364-8351) ntowhee@gmail.com
- Recording Clerk: Amy Cooke, amylisette@gmail.com
- Sierra Friends Center: Dean Olson (530)270-9366 deanolson44@gmail.com
- **Treasurer:** Fosten Wilson, (530) 265-6533, fostenw@yahoo.com
- Website/Facebook Coordinator: Amy Cookeamylisette@gmail.com
- Zoom Coordinators: Hailey Wilson seahorseleaf@protonmail.com, Stuart Smith sewsmitharts@yahoo.com

REPRESENTATIVES:

- 1. AFSC: 5
- College Park Quarterly:
- 3. FASE:
- 5. FCLCA:
- 6. FGC Liaison:
- 7. PYM: Don
 - McCormick
- 4. FCNL: 8. Quaker Center:
- 9. QUNP:
- 10. Right Sharing of World Resources: Judy
- 11. Sierra Friends Center: Pat Phillips
- 12. Interfaith Nevada County: Dianne Marshall

COMMITTEES: (convener or clerk in bold)

<u>Stewardship:</u> Mary Starr, Gordon Starr, Reed Hamilton, Pat Phillips, Doug Hamm, Fosten Wilson (Treasurer, Ex-officio) Dianne Marshall (ex officio as Librarian and Newsletter Editor), Hailey Wilson

<u>Spirit/Witness:</u> <u>Judy Hamilton</u>, Gordon Starr, Judy Hamilton, Gordon Bishop, Dorothy Henderson, Anita and Don McCormick (ex-officio Co Clerks),

<u>Welcome:</u> Kathy McCreery, Karen Olson, ex officio Website/Facebook Coordinator (Amy Cooke), ex officio Zoom coordinator (Hailey Wilson and Stuart Smith), ex officio Email Coordinator (Judy Hamilton)

Children's Program: Dorothy Henderson, Karen Olson, Judy Hamilton, Gordon Bishop, Anita McCormick,

Doug Hamm, Don McCormick

Grass Valley Friends Meeting



13075 Woolman Lane, Nevada City, CA 95959 Return Address Requested